
1 

 

 

BOARD OF PARK COMMISSIONERS THURSDAY, 

DECEMBER 19, 2019 AT 6:30PM 

CITY HALL, CONFERENCE ROOM 2A

 AGENDA 
Call to order 

1. Roll Call

2. Approval of Board of Park Commissioner meeting minutes from October 23, 2019

3. Comments from the public limited to 5 minutes

4. Acceptance of Board of Park Commissions Funds/Impact Fees Reports

5. Recurring Business

A. Review of parks events calendar (off season) 

B. Review of YMCA activity at Veterans Park (off season, no report expected) 

C. Update on conditions of parks from city staff or park board members 

6. New Business

A. Aldermanic Request (none for this month) 

B. Park Fees specific to series of games/leagues 

C. Presentation from Leadership Dynamic group - Badger High School 

D. Discussion of City Ordinance Chapter 54, Title III 

7. Business Carried Forward

A. Bicycle rack donation from TreadHead Cycling 

B. Grant applications – status report (review email) 

C. Advertisement boards at Veterans Park 

D. Concession stand leases 

E. Native plantings – Convention of Nursery Men and Women 

8. Future meeting agenda items

9. Adjourn

Next meeting date: Wednesday, January 22, 2019 @ 6:30pm

cc: Aldermen, Mayor, Administrator, MediaPo 

City of Lake Geneva 

626 Geneva Street 

Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

(262) 248-3673 

www.cityoflakegeneva.com 



BOARD OF PARK COMMISSIONERS MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 23, 2019  

City Hall, Conference Room 2A 

 

President Esarco called the meeting to order at 6:44 p.m. CST. We adjourned at 8:09 p.m. and a lot of 
good stuff happened between.  The stuff follows. 

 
Roll Call:  Present: President Esarco, Mayor Hartz, Barbara Philipps, Obdulia Alvarez, Peggy Schneider, 
Brian Olsen, Meaghen Madden-Van Dyke 
 
Excused: Dave Quickel, Alderman Straube 
 
Staff Present: None 
 
Also in attendance was Jackie Mich, Planner from Vandewalle & Assoc. 
 
Public Present: Dick Malmin, Trish Schaefer, Avi Mor, YMCA Sports Director 
 
Approval of Board of Park Commissioner meeting minutes from September 25, 2019:  Esarco/Hartz 
moved to approve the minutes with one correction – spelling of Ed Yaeger.  Approved 7-0 
 
Comments from the public: (The following are summaries and not direct quotes) 
Dick Malmin N 1991 South Lake Shore Drive, Linn Township: Dick noted that the City of Lake Geneva is 
on a suicide watch for its irrational and destructive behavior.  He suggested that the City leaders want to 
pave over the 200+ acres at Hillmoor.  Dick proposed that whatever happens at Hillmoor should be 
community oriented. 

Trish Schaefer, Sage Street, City of Lake Geneva: Ms. Schaefer presented her stone memorializing her 
husband, noting that it had not been cared for by the City.  The tree that it marked was not thriving.  She 
noted that the brick she had purchased and had placed at Dreihaus Plaza celebrating her marriage was 
also in disrepair.  She asked if the City couldn’t do better, if there were not other opportunities for 
residents to memorialize loved ones in the parks. 

Avi Mor, Sports Director for the YMCA:  Reported that there were 684 participants in the Veterans Park 
sports activities coordinated through the YMCA. 

Acceptance of Board of Park Commissioners Funds Report: 
Olsen/Hartz moved to accept the Board of Park Commissioners Funds Report. Approved 7-0 
 
New Business 
 
Grant Applications – Proposal from Vandewalle: 
Ms. Mich presented a spreadsheet of potential grant funds that the City could apply for to implement 
programs and construct and maintain facilities identified in the Lake Geneva Park Plan and Bike/Ped 
Plans.  Esarco/Schneider moved to direct Vandewalle to write a proposal for writing MLS and ADLP grant 
applications.  Approved 7-0 
 
 
 
 



BOARD OF PARK COMMISSIONERS MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 23, 2019  

City Hall, Conference Room 2A 
 
Discussion/Recommendation: Grand Geneva request to advertise at Veterans Park: 
Continued to next meeting. 
 
Discussion/Recommendation: Concession stand lease Veterans Park: 
Continued to next meeting.  The current lessee and the YMCA will be asked about their interest in 
renting the Concession stand for next year. 
 
Recurring Business: 
President Esarco presented Neil Waswo’s report. 
 
Business Carried Forward: 

 Update on YMCA Agreement:  The Board of Park Commissioners edits have been presented to 
the City Attorney and the YMCA Board. 

 Update on $15,000 budgeted for multi-use path:  Mayor Hartz reported that the $15,000 will be 
rolled over into the 2020 budget to be increased to a total of $30,000. 

 
Olsen/Philipps moved to adjourn the meeting of the Board of Park Commissioners at 8:09 p.m. 
Approved 7-0 
 
Recorded by Mayor Hartz, Secretary of the Board of Park Commissioners.  Any errors are the result of 
naiveté and poor self-editing. 
 

These minutes are not official until approved by the Board of Park Commissioners. 









Park Impact Fee Funds 11/30/2019

Effective Date of Ordinance = 4/22/2004

EXPENDITURES REMAINING

Year

 Impact 

Fees   

 Interest 

Earned 

 Impact Fee $ 

Spent  Impact Fee Balance Notes on what $ spent on

2003 Transfer of old park fund

2004 16,560.00   158.81            16,718.81                   

2005 15,870.00   952.44            33,541.25                   

2006 11,250.00   1,980.99         46,772.24                   

2007 6,272.00     2,477.22         (46,615.61)            8,905.85                     Playground equipment, Planning

2008 20,808.00   1,053.67         (124.00)                 30,643.51                   Park Planning

2009 1,978.00     224.33            (7,589.00)              25,256.84                   Molitor field 

2010 1,380.00     93.52              (19,317.01)            7,413.34                     Vet's park field, retaining wall

2011 19,248.00   51.76              26,713.10                   

2012 3,910.00     68.23              (2,889.38)              27,801.95                   Vet's Park south soccer field

2013 6,226.00     34.92              (11,386.78)            22,676.09                   Manual scoreboard,batting cages,disc golf

2014 8,982.00     24.48              (4,046.00)              27,636.57                   Park survey postcards, disc golf signs

2015 7,820.00     35.80              (23,245.68)            12,246.68                   Dog park fencing,signs

2015 12,246.68                   

2016 12,190.00   98.70              (4,551.00)              19,984.38                   Dog Park water line

2017 20,286.00   185.90            (20,000.00)            20,456.28                   Manning Way Playground Equipment

2018 20,654.00   516.62            (2,715.00)              38,911.89                   Soccer goals/Bleachers/Shade Structure

2019 13,340.00   905.16            53,157.05                   

Totals 186,774.00 8,862.51         (142,479.46)          53,157.05                   

53,157.05              = Impact Fee balance

IMPACT FEE  SUMMARY: Revenues 

Collected Interest Earned Expenditures  Must be spent by: 

2003-2006 43,680.00   3,092.24         (87,921.78)            (41,149.54)                   Must be spent by 12/31/2013 

2007 6,272.00     2,477.22         (4,046.00)              (36,446.33)                   Must be spent by 12/31/2014 

2008 20,808.00   1,053.67         (23,245.68)            (37,830.34)                   Must be spent by 12/31/2015 

2009 1,978.00     224.33            (4,551.00)              (40,179.02)                   Must be spent by 12/31/2016 

2010 1,380.00     93.52              (20,000.00)            (58,705.50)                   Must be spent by 12/31/2017 

2011 19,248.00   51.76              (2,715.00)              (42,120.75)                   Must be spent by 12/31/2018 

2012 3,910.00     68.23              -                        (38,142.52)                   Must be spent by 12/31/2019 

2013 6,226.00     34.92              (31,881.60)                   Must be spent by 12/31/2020 

2014 8,982.00     24.48              (22,875.12)                   Must be spent by 12/31/2021 

2015 7,820.00     35.80              (15,019.32)                   Must be spent by 12/31/2022 

2016 12,190.00   98.70              (2,730.63)                     Must be spent by 12/31/2023 

2017 20,286.00   185.90            17,741.28                    Must be spent by 12/31/2024 

2018 20,654.00   516.62            38,911.89                    Must be spent by 12/31/2025 

2019 13,340.00   905.16            53,157.05                    Must be spent by 12/31/2026 

186,774.00 8,862.51         (142,479.46)          

REVENUES



 
1 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT dated the _____ day of ___________, 2019, by and between the City 

of Lake Geneva (hereinafter “City”) and the Geneva Lakes Family YMCA, Inc. (hereinafter 

“YMCA”). 

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, City and YMCA wish to work cooperatively to provide recreational services 

and utilize athletic fields owned by the City; and 

 WHEREAS, City and YMCA wish to ensure that recreational facilities and programs are 

available to as many residents of the City as possible; and 

 WHEREAS, City and YMCA wish to clarify the relative roles and responsibilities of each 

party to provide recreational facilities and programs to the residents of the City; 

 NOW THEREFORE, the mutual covenants contained herein and other good and valuable 

consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged the parties hereto 

agree as follows: 

1. The above recitals are incorporated herein by reference. 

2. The term of this agreement shall be for a term of one (1) year commencing on __ day 

of _________, 20___. 

3. For the services recited herein, the City shall pay the sum of Fifty-Five Thousand 

Eighty and no/100 ($55,080.00) Dollars for the term of this agreement.  The sum shall 

be paid in bi-monthly installments. 

4. In exchange for the sum provided herein, the YMCA shall do the following: 

a. Provide recreational programs at Veteran’s Park as appropriate. List of programs 

shall include but not be limited to: T-Ball, Baseball, Softball, Travel 

baseball/softball, Tournament level baseball/softball, flag football, volleyball, 

soccer, LaCrosse, Adult softball, Coed softball, Adult Kickball, Pickleball. 



 
2 

 

b. Coordinate the use of the athletic fields at Veteran’s Park for use by all groups 

interested in using said fields in a non-discriminating manner.  Ensure that all 

groups and organizations have equal access to the athletic fields provided by the 

City. 

 

c. Prepare the baseball/softball fields for use by any organization regardless of their 

affiliation with the YMCA by marking the fields and placing of necessary 

equipment such as bases or volleyball nets.  The YMCA shall be notified a 

minimum of one week in advance of events to coordinate proper staffing.  

 

d. Coordinate the use of the fields with the City of Lake Geneva through a shared 

calendar such as google calendar. 

 

e. Make books and records available to the City showing revenues received and 

expenses paid for use of Veteran’s Park. 

 

f. Provide no less than 15% discount rates for City residents participating in activities 

through the YMCA which are conducted at Veteran’s Park. 

g. Tournaments and other rentals at Veteran’s Park will be booked through the City. 

Net proceeds will be shared equally between the City and the YMCA.  A separate 

rental agreement will be used. 

h. The YMCA and City of Lake Geneva shall each provide a One Million 

($1,000,000.00) Dollar liability insurance policy naming the other as an additional 

insured. 

 

i. Responsibilities and equipment available for use at Veteran’s Park shall be as 

follows: 

City of Lake Geneva 

Mowing 



 
3 

 

Trash pickup of entire park (except Concession stand and 2nd floor of Lions Den/asphalt 

area) 

Gas for power equipment 

½ purchase price of groomer 

Flower beds 

Maintenance and repair of groomer 

Clean and maintain bathrooms 

Bids out concession stand 

Any field rental agreements 

City allows YMCA to use the garage for storage of equipment related to these activities 

(not use of Lions Den) 

Owns and maintains regulation size Soccer Goals and nets 

Basketball nets 

 

YMCA 

All field work/maintenance 

Check oil/filters, wash groomer  

Concession Stand and 2nd floor Lions Den/asphalt areas/ prep/cleaning/trash pickup 

Equipment purchases for programs 

Maintain Batting cages 

Owns Volleyball nets 

Owns Bases 

Owns chalker 

Dispense of watering required for baseball game usage (water supplied by City) 

Operations of any tournaments run thru the YMCA 

Communication with city clerk on scheduling of park 

½ purchase price of groomer 

Owner of lawn tractor, push mower, golf cart – do all maintenance 

 



 
4 

 

j. The YMCA will ensure that the fields and facilities are used in a reasonable manner 

by all patrons and invitees of the YMCA. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have set their hand and seal this ______ day 

of ____________, 2019. 

      CITY OF LAKE GENEVA, a municipal corporation 

 

          By:         
      THOMAS HARTZ, Mayor 

 

     Attest:         

 

 

GENEVA LAKES FAMILY YMCA, Inc.   
 
 

 
          By:         



PARK FUNDS SUMMARY 11/30/2019

EXPENDITURES

Year  Park Fund 

 Interest 

Earned 

 Park Fund $ 

Spent 

Notes on what $ 

spent on

2003 46,113.26              Transfer of old park fund

2004 3,928.00    158.81      

2005 2,552.00    952.44      

2006 1,407.00    1,980.99   

2007 575.00       2,477.22   

2008 150.00       1,053.67   

2009 100.00       224.33      

2010 150.00       93.52        

2011 50.00         51.76        

2012 68.23        (28,489.24)            Vet's Park south soccer field

2013 150.00       34.92        (6,455.46)              Manual scoreboard,batting cages,disc golf

2014 1,150.00    24.48        (1,610.98)              Park survey postcards, disc golf signs

2015 250.00       35.80        

2015 (15,000.00)            Transfer to Adaptive Playground Fund

2016 50.00         98.70        

2017 185.90      

2018 15,471.00  516.62      (21,060.00)            Soccer goals/Bleachers/Shade Structure

2019 20.00         506.70      (2,411.85)              Bench-Newman

Totals 26,003.00  8,464.05   (75,027.53)            

5,552.78                = Park Fund balance

15,000.00              = Adaptive Playground Fund balance

20,552.78              = Total Park Funds

REVENUES











From: Ann Esarco aesarco@me.com
Subject: Re: Park Board Meeting tonight

Date: November 14, 2019 at 3:00 PM
To: Jackie Mich jmich@vandewalle.com

Thank you Jackie. That makes perfect sense. Maybe we can come up with a timeline? I’d like to be present for as many meetings as
possible. 

Kind regards. 
Ann

On Nov 14, 2019, at 5:05 PM, Jackie Mich <jmich@vandewalle.com> wrote:

Hi Ann, 

I was not planning on attending that meeting! I am sorry if there was a miscommunication about this and if that was my error. 

Here is my update:
I have been coordinating with the City Engineer and Director of Public Works on coordinating on a grant application for the WisDOT
MLS Grant. Apparently, they were already submitting for this grant independently (resurfacing of Edwards Blvd primarily), and I
thought it would be best if we joined forces. They were looking at Edwards Boulevard improvements and I encouraged them to
include the intersection improvements recommended in the Bike/Ped Plan - in particular the problematic intersection at Townline
Road near the schools. Unfortunately, after speaking with the DOT, we determined that project wasn't eligible, because, south of
Main St, Edwards is a state/connecting highway and therefore ineligible. The City Engineer and Director of Public Works will adjust
their application to focus on simply resurfacing the non-state-highway portion of Edwards. The City is allowed to submit up to three
MLS grant applications, but I'm wondering if it's a good idea to submit a separate application that might compete with what the
Public Work Department is already planning to submit. 

My suggestion is that we focus our attention on the upcoming TAP Grant applications (due in January) and the Knowles-Nelson
Stewardship Grant applications (due in May). I think a good next step would be to set a meeting with pertinent City staff so that I
understand what projects are the most viable (and what other projects are in the works!) so that we can create the strongest
possible application. We could then bring those options to a future park board meetings. What do you think about this approach?

Jackie

-----Original Message-----
From: Ann Esarco <aesarco@me.com> 
Sent: Thursday, November 14, 2019 3:28 PM
To: Jackie Mich <jmich@vandewalle.com>
Cc: Tom Hartz - Mayor <thartz@cityoflakegeneva.com>
Subject: Park Board Meeting tonight 

Hi Jackie,

I am just checking in with you to see if you are planning on being at the Park Board Meeting tonight at 7pm, Lake Geneva City hall?

Be well,
Ann

mailto:Esarcoaesarco@me.com
mailto:Esarcoaesarco@me.com
mailto:Michjmich@vandewalle.com
mailto:Michjmich@vandewalle.com











	01. Agenda 2019.12.19
	02. 10-23-2019 Park Board Minutes
	03. Park Reservations DEC19_2020
	06.b. Park Impact Fees 2019 Nov
	06.b.a. YMCA Agreement and list 12-03-19 - PB-Y reviewed
	06.c. Park Funds 2019 Nov
	06.d. Park Board Ordinance
	07.b. Park Board Meeting tonight
	07.d. Agreement-Concession Agreement for Veterans Park-Ro-Della Inc-Rod Brenne...

